
Harrisburg City Council Business Meeting Minutes 
September 14, 2021 

6:30 PM 

Mayor: Robert Duncan 
Council President: Mike Caughey 
Councilors Present:  Kimberly Downey, Robert Boese, Adam Keaton 
Councilors Absent:     Randy Klemm, and Charlotte Thomas 
Staff Present:        City Administrator Michele Eldridge, Public Works Director Chuck 

Scholz, Finance Officer Cathy Nelson, and City Recorder Lori Ross 
Meeting Location: Harrisburg Municipal Center @ 354 Smith St 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL by Mayor, Robert Duncan at the hour of 6:43pm. 

CONCERNED CITIZEN(S) IN THE AUDIENCE. All in attendance were there for items on the 
agenda. 

THE MATTER OF DISCUSSING THE HARRISBURG FISCAL YEAR 2019-2020 AUDIT REPORT 
WITH THE AUDITOR, STEVE TUCHSCHERER 
STAFF REPORT: City Auditor Tuchscherer, who is attending via Zoom, commented this was a 
clean audit, nothing was omitted, and it was a fair representation of FY 2019/2020.  Some of the 
highlights included:  
• Tuchscherer commented that page 14 is a statement of net position and is a

representation of City assets broken into two columns; business activities which
include water and sewer funds and governmental activity which is everything else
including HRA funds. He stated that the City has a unique arraignment of funds which
can create challenges in this reporting.

• The liabilities section shows bonds payable of $11 million.  Most of this was transferred
over into the water/sewer funds for utility projects because the expenditures of those
funds were through the capital projects funds then recorded on the governmental side.

• On page 15, equity transfers of $8.75 million was paid out for capital improvement then
handed over to the water/sewer fund from capital improvement fund for ownership of
assets.  This is confusing but there is no way to make it less, unless the City was to



Harrisburg City Council Business Meeting Minutes 
September 14, 2021 

2 
 

separate the capital project funds or to budget for capital projects actives within those 
utility funds and the same to any debt related to it. 

• On page 16, the balance sheet for governmental funds, shows no reference to long 
term debt or capital assets due to changing the way we look at budgetary accounting.  
The City does not recognize the debt in the budget except for what’s required to be 
paid making this balance sheet much simpler.  

• On page 20, it shows the proprietary funds, the capital assets, and liabilities. On this 
report there is no reconciliation between accounting and proprietary funds and the 
reason is to allow the City to see business activities more like they were a business  
which is useful when selling bonds or obtaining loans.  

• Notes of the financial statements, starting on page 23, shows a lot of detail that helps 
you understand the financial statements and the budgetary schedules.   

• Tuchscherer noted that the City was in good shape at the end of FY 2020 and its due 
to the interaction with Nelson and Eldridge in getting the reports done. 

• Mayor Duncan thanked Tuchscherer for explaining the audit to Council.   
• Caughey motioned to approve the City’s Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Audit 

Report, as presented by the Auditor Steve Tuchscherer, and was 
seconded by Downey.  The City Council then voted unanimously to 
approve the City’s Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Audit Report, as presented by 
the Auditor Steve Tuchscherer. 

                         

THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE CONSENT LIST 
STAFF REPORT:  Caughey asked to remove the payment approval report from the Consent List 
and had a question about the citation report.  
• Caughey asked what the difference was between the abbreviation LCS and LCSO. 

Ross replied that both are the Linn County Sheriff Office and explained the Caselle 
Software that we use for court was set up with both abbreviations.   

• Caughey asked about the payment approval report, in reference to the Cobalt payment 
of $9,832.80.  Nelson replied it’s our annual charge for Microsoft software and security 
support for 14 employees. Caughey then asked about the payment for Pacific 
Underground for the amount of $20,564.28.  Scholz commented that it was the final 
payment for the sewer crossover under the tracks.  

• Downey then motioned to approve the Payment Report for August 2021 
and was seconded  by Boese.  City Council then voted unanimously to 
approve the Payment Report for August 2021.    

• Downey then motioned to approve the Consent List and was seconded by 
Caughey.  City Council then voted unanimously to approve the Consent 
List.                       

                 The item approved by this action was as follows:  
• Harrisburg City Council Minutes for June 22, 2021 

THE MATTER OF APPROVING ORDINANCE NO 979, ‘’AN ORDINANCE RENEWING THE 
FRANCHISE OF AT & T CORPORATION THOUGH ITS INTERSTATE DIVISION FOR THE 
PLACEMENT OF COMMUNICATION FACILITIES WITHIN THE CITY OF HARRISBURG, STATE 
OF OREGON, AND REPEALING ORDINANCE NO. 902” 
STAFF REPORT: Eldridge pointed out that the agenda packets were missing half of the redlined 
changes made to Ordinance 902 (EXHIBIT B) and therefore, we have supplied those pages 
tonight.(ADDENDUM 1) Eldridge stated that AT&T has been wonderful to work with and they had 
no issues with the changes made.  She pointed out that last fiscal year the City had $14,000 
budgeted and received $16,000 from AT&T.  Some changes made to the Franchise Agreement 



Harrisburg City Council Business Meeting Minutes 
September 14, 2021 

3 
 

included section 3.1(C) and 3.2 for emergency situations and on page 3 due to the Oregon Contract 
Laws.     

• Downey motioned to approve Ordinance No. 979, “An Ordinance Renewing 
the Franchise of AT&T Corporation through its Interstate Division for the 
Placement of Communication Facilities within the City of Harrisburg, State of 
Oregon, and Repealing Ordinance No. 902” and was seconded by Caughey.  
City Council then voted unanimously to approve Ordinance No. 979, “An 
Ordinance Renewing the Franchise of AT&T Corporation through its 
Interstate Division for the Placement of Communication Facilities within the 
City of Harrisburg, State of Oregon, and Repealing Ordinance No. 902.” 

 

CITY ADMINISTRATOR VERBAL REPORT  

1. HURDS HARDWARD: Eldridge informed Council that Hurd’s Hardware received 
the award for the Tri-County Chamber of Commerce Large Business of the Year. 
Hurds has received this award several times before as they are wonderful 
members of the community.    

2. WOODHILL: Is the sub-division on the southern portion of Sommerville Loop.  
Eldridge stated considerations are still being made, but they might be changing 
from 31 lots to 10 lots. They started looking at the storm water and detention 
systems and recognized they would have to lose two lots in order to compensate 
for the 25-year storm. Because of that, they are considering not having the second 
street going through the wetlands and to keep the 9th St extension. Downey 
commented they are losing half of their lots and Mayor Duncan replied that it cost a 
lot to put a street in. Eldridge added that the detention system is also expensive. 
She is hoping to keep them at the higher number as no decision has been made 
yet.         

3. BUTTERFLY: Eldridge informed Council, they are close to being finished with all of 
the engineering development. Once they complete the technical revue with 
Eldridge and the City Engineer, and the County Survey’s Office for recording, they 
can start selling.     

4. SHADWOOD: Eldridge informed Council they are asking for a one-year extension 
next week at the Planning Commission meeting. Downey asked where it was 
located and if it was multi-dwelling. Eldridge replied that it’s located at the end of 
Sommerville Loop and is R-3 high density that includes two 9,000 sq ft lots.  
Caughey asked who was paying for 9th St and Scholz replied it was Woodhill as 
part of the infrastructure cost.   

5. S 9TH ST EXTENTION: Eldridge stated this is the extension that runs from Max 
Hammer to Sommerville Loop which will help with congestion on Sommerville Loop 
associated with the new construction. Eldridge noted that she will be reaching out 
to Aaron Brown about the possibility of obtaining 10 feet of his property in order to 
provide curb and gutters.   

6. BN: This franchise agreement expires in 2022.  Eldridge commented that Marty 
Wilde did speak with some lobbyist in Salem, and one of them will look into getting 
the City paid on the outstanding $550 bill from 2017.  We are also having our 
surveyor research 4th St and the Railroad, to see which came first.          

7. DISTINGUISHED SERVICE AWARDS:  Eldridge reminded Council the deadline to 
nominate someone is October 1st for this award.  There are a lot of deserving 
people in Harrisburg, and unlike the business awards, you can only win once.   



Harrisburg City Council Business Meeting Minutes 
September 14, 2021 

4 
 

OTHER ITEMS  
 
• Scholz informed Council of good news he received yesterday from the design 

engineers with ODOT, that are working on Junction City, Monroe, Aurora, and 
Harrisburg ADA ramps.  He feels their set of plans look really good for Harrisburg 
getting the rapid flash beacon for the ODOT 2022/2024 budget cycle.   

• Scholz then informed Council on his bad news, stating that the City was notified that  
we exceeded the action level for lead in our drinking water and felt this is an incorrect 
statement. Normally, we have one home that is relatively consistent of being over the 
federal EPA for lead. However, once you hit two homes or 10 percent of the homes 
you tested, you fall under this category. The City test 20 homes every three years by 
rule.  The test consists of distributing small testing bottles to homes that meet the 
criteria for the most probability. The bottles are left with instructions then picked up the 
next day for submission to the lab. We also test the City system, monthly and quarterly 
and we have not had any lead or copper presence. If a test comes back positive, the 
EPA has a set of rules, the City must follow to help alleviate the homeowner’s problem. 
Scholz noted that one of the homes, is in a section that has had the mainline as well as 
their service line replaced and commented that the resident informed him that the 
water was taken from a faucet she never uses. Due to this, the City has had to retest 
our wells to show no presence and they require the City to distribute a pamphlet with 
the water bill once a year for the next three years as well as include a quarterly 
statement in the water bill informing residents that the City has been found to have high 
levels of lead or copper. Chuck referred Council to the pamphlet, ADDENDUM 2. The 
EPA also requires several steps to be submitted by 2024 including an action plan and 
a modify treatment plan to reduce the alkalinity in the water. This will include another 
chemical being added to the drinking water, which he stated was not a bad chemical. 
Scholz doesn’t want to make light of the fact that lead can be extremely hazardous for 
a certain group of people and if you get too much it’s very bad for you.  He stated he 
reached out to the residents who tested positive and helped them come up with a plan 
to help the levels stay as low as possible, by suggesting a filter that targets lead and 
flushing water prior to cooking. Scholz stated that he has updated the City website the 
helpful information and well as supplied links on the pamphlet. Downey asked if the 
City test residents’ water and Scholz answered that we don’t. The only homes we test, 
are old homes, prior to 1986 that meet certain criteria and only during our testing year. 
If residents would like to test their water, there is information available in the pamphlet 
regarding at home kits or testing laboratories.         

• Keaton asked Council if they have seen the underpass on Hwy 99 by Delta/Beltline 
where they are installing ADA ramps with no sidewalks.  Scholz commented that 
ODOT was sued to put in ADA ramps, not sidewalks. Downey stated that she receives 
constant complaints about the bulb outs on Smith St. Scholz commented that he has 
had several residents say that they love it especially on the 4th of July.   

• Keaton asked if anyone has spoken with businesses regarding the use of the slow 
tracks and Scholz stated that he has spoken with two, one had a concern and the other 
did not.  

• Keaton informed the Council that the School Board was on the news this morning 
regarding their vote to comply with the State of Oregon mask mandate and explained 
that the board voted 3-2 to comply.  He was thinking this might be a good time for 
Council to do something. Downey stated that the City would need to be careful and 
advise legal counsel to avoid any legal repercussions. Mayor Duncan commented that 
he spoke with the superintendent before the latest mandate and asked what he thought 
he would do.  It was relayed that he would leave it open to whatever the board advised.   



Harrisburg City Council Business Meeting Minutes 
September 14, 2021 

5 

• Keaton stated that he is chairing up for the Law and Criminal Justice Plank of the
Republican Platform Convention and wanted to know if anyone wanted to speak with
him about it? Mayor Duncan asked how the redistricting was going and Keaton stated
some of the maps show Portland in all six Congressional Districts and some that are
50/50. In the House District we end up in a better position, but with the Senate District,
we end up with one of the Eugene Districts.  He’s not sure if we will end up better as
far as representation.

• Eldridge stated that Cameron McCarthy’s agreement went through, and we will be
setting up our first meeting.  She also noted that she has found some new grants
including one for trails.

• Mayor Duncan spoke of former Youth Advisory Committee member, Quinton Sheridan
and stated he had several proposals for City Council including people in need, animal
resources and a youth center for young people. Caughey asked if we were going to get
a youth representative this year, and Eldridge responded that she would look into it.

ADJOURN at the hour of 7:52pm. 

MAYOR                                                                        CITY RECORDER
____________________                                             ____________________



Addendum 1

Exhibit B from 9.14.21 
including missing pages.   















ADDENDUM 2






